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INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY

HINAME

HISTORIC Rock Run Mill

AND/OR COMMON

BEJLOCATION
STREET& NUMBER  Stafford Road at Rock Run Road
CITY. TOWN CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
Rock Run —— VICINITY OF First
STATE COUNTY
_ Maryland Harford
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
__DISTRICT _ZPUBLIC XOCCUPIED __AGRICULTURE XMUSEUM
X BUILDING(S) __PRIVATE __UNOCCUPIED __COMMERCIAL XPARK
__STRUCTURE __BOTH __WORK IN PROGRESS __EDUCATIONAL _PRIVATE RESIDENCE
__SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE __ENTERTAINMENT _RELIGIOUS
—OBJECT __IN PROCESS XYES: RESTRICTED __GOVERNMENT _SCIENTIFIC
__BEING CONSIDERED __YES: UNRESTRICTED __INDUSTRIAL __TRANSPORTATION
__NO __MILITARY __OTHER:

EYOWNER OF PROPERTY
NAME
Department of Natural Resources Telephone #:
STREET & NUMBER
Tawes State Office Building

CITY. TOWN sTaTE, Zip code
Annapolis ___ VICINITY OF Maryland 21401

EILOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION Liber #: Gcae 573

COURTHOUSE. Folio #: 335
REGISTRY OF DEEDS,ETC.  Harford County Courthouse

STREET & NUMBER

CITY. TOWN Bel Air Ma;;AlTaE.nd
TI REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

—FEDERAL _STATE _COUNTY __LOCAL

DEPOSITORY FOR
SURVEY RECORDS

CITY. TOWN STATE




DESCRIPTION A

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
ZKEXCELLENT __DETERIORATED X_UNALTERED —YORIGINAL SITE
—GOOoD —RUINS —ALTERED —MOVED DATE
—FAIR —UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Rock Run Mill, located on the east side of Stafford Road south of its intersection
with Rock Run Road, is an impressive three-storey heavily quoined fieldstone structure
constructed in 1794. Iron caps are visible on the north and south ends of the building
holding fast the iron supports that run through the north-south axis similar supports
sun east to west. The gable roof is wood shingled with simple rake boards and a boxed
cornice. A corbel capped brick chimney rises from the northwest corner of the structure.

The three-bay west facade is defined by a recessed central vertical boarded door
flanked by window openings. The door surround is pegged and the strap hinges appear
to be its original hardware. Window openings have been closed by vertical boarded
shutters also displaying heavy strap hinges.Similarly treated window openings mark the
corresponding openings of the second and thirs storeys.

The east facade is four bays wide.Two entrances are located on this facade: the
first,at basement level in the second bay from the southeast cormer, the second, on the
first storey in the third bay from the southeast corner. Small cellar windows are
found in the third and fourth bays respectively from the southeast corner. Vertical-
boarded shuttered windows flank the door of the first storey. Similarly treated
windows define the openings of the second and third storeys.

The north facade is two bays wide with vertical-boarded shuttered windows marking
these openings on the first, second and third storeys. The tympanum area has been
weatherboarded. Three 6/6 sashed windows, triangularly placed, punctuate this area.

The south gable facade also has been weatherboarded at the attic level. Three
6/6 sashed windows also appear in this area. The wheel constructed by the Fitz Water
Wheel Company, Hanover, Pa., is seated in a stone moat-like basin that runs around
the east facade of the mill. The axle stem connection into the wall is ringed with
a brick arch immediately to the east is another bricked-in opening where a log was
located that was turned by the inner gear of the water wheel.

Across and paralleling Stafford Road is the mill race which terminates at a sluice
gate. A fieldstone pier support system carries the water over the road in a metal
pipe. Originally this pipe was a wooden trough.

Some interesting inscriptions are chiselled into the stone walls of the mill.

Although most of them are #llegible, several can still be diciphered: "J. J. Wm,"
"W. G. 1805" and '"C. R. Smith 1801."

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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B SIGNIFICANCE N
PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—PREHISTORIC —ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC __COMMUNITY PLANNING __LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE —RELIGION
—1400-1499 __ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION __LAW __SCIENCE
__1500-1599 __AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS __ LITERATURE ___SCULPTURE
—1600-1699 X_ARCHITECTURE __EDUCATION —MILITARY __SOCIALVHUMANITARIAN
X1700-1799 _—ART __ENGINEERING __MUSIC —THEATER
__1800-1899 X COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  __PHILOSOPHY __TRANSPORTATION
—1900- —COMMUNICATIONS X INDUSTRY __POLITICS/GOVERNMENT __OTHER (SPECIFY)
__INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The following information was collected by Paul Penrod in 1976. The attached
title search also was executed by Penrod.

"One of the oldest mills still standing in Harford County, Rock Run Mill is
actually the second mill to be located in this area. The first one stood one-half
mile above the present structure and was owned by the Giles family.

Jacob Giles had owned the tract where both mills had been located, a 712-acre
portion of Land of Promisé. John Stump III, who already owned the Stafford Mill,
obtained some of Giles land and constructed the existing mill in 1794. He went onto
become one of the wealthiest men in Maryland, although its prominence was somewhat
dimmed as it was suspected that he sold flour to the British during the War of 1812.

In 1801, Stump sold a half-interest in the mill to John Carter who soon died in
1805 with the interest reverting to John Stump. After his death in 1816, Ann Archer,
one of the seven Stump children, took possession of the mill, leasing it out to
various contractors until her death in 1871. Henry W. Archer, her son, then became
the trustee and he and a Joseph C. Parker operated the mill for the profit of the
other Archer heirs.

The floor milling operation continued into the 20th century and did not cease

until after World War II, under the ownership of John M. Macklem and W. W. Wilkinson,
thus giving the structure a commercial career spanning three centuries."

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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FIMA]JOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Harford County Directory, 1953.

Mason, Samuel; Historical Sketches of Harford County.

1955, Lancaster, Pa.
Wright, C. Milton, Qur Harford Heritage, 1967.

Balttmore, Md.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY

EDIGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY

STATE COUNTY

[§1FORM PREPARED BY

NAME / FITLE
Bridget M. Deale, Historic Sites Surveyor

ORGANIZATION DATE

Maryland Historical Trust 1979
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
21 State Circle (301)269-2438
CiTY OR TOWN STATE
Annapolis Maryland

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle

Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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TITLE SEARCH

In 19261, Marie Wilkinson Turcotte and Henry Turcotte sold
two parcels, me“suring 1.7h and 30.5L acres, to the Marylond
Eepartment of Yoreste and Parks,

These same two nlobs vere lcft to the Tarcobbtes by this will
after the deaths of "Hlfred W. Wilkipson in 1953 aid Yiaude I,
Wilkinson in 1958%,

Lavinia Macklem sold the 33-acre tract of the Fock Rum #ill
to Wilfred Y. Wilkinseon in 1929,

Tn 1904, William S. Archer and Ferry W. Archer, trustees, sol:
the 33 acres to John M. Macklem. The deed states that this
tract was part of the Land of Fromise, which was owned by
Nathaniel Ciles until his death in 1775, and which was then s2ld
in 1797 by Elizabeth Giles to John Stump of Stafford.

In 1943, Elizabeth Esley s-ld 1! acres to Wilfred W. Wilkirson.

William S. Ercher, surviving executor, sold the plot to
Elizabeth Esley in 1518.

Henry W. chher, Jr., was nzmed as a trustee after z court casc
invelving 1 .enr} We Archer znd Thomas V. Maddock. In 1878, the
trustee sold Henry W. Archer the Rock Run Mill property cf

€0 acres zs well as an adjacent farm of 132 acres, three roods
and 36 perches. The trustees were holding the property after
the death of Ann Archer, daughter of John Stump. Ann had been
left considerzble holdings including the RocE Run Mill and ©
old Carter house after John Stunp's death in 1%1€, fnn died

in 1871, leaving the property to her son, Henry W. Archer, zs=
executor.

Cassandra Stump, widow of John Stump, conveyed the mill properiy
to Jdohn and Ann Lrcher 1f 1%1€. They zlso reccived the tract
where Lapidum was laiZg out.

Samuel Carter, son of o*r Carter, sclcd his interest in the =:iil
and the house to John Stump. The trac+ measured LO acres ir this
1803 transact J'-LO..A.

Ir 1801, John Stump sold to John Carter a hzlf-interest in the
mill property that was once part of the land of Promise.

In 1797, X1izabeth Giles, daughter of Fathaniel Oiles, solé

2

G& acres to Johnm Stump, Jr.
-~
1 ]
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J13 L 2t9 The execvtors of the Jacoh Ciles estzle conveyed one-half
acre near lock Tun Landing to John Stump in 179k,
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In 1961, Marie Wilkinson Turcotte and Henry Turcotte sold
two parcels, measuring 1l.7h and 30,5L acres, to the Maryland
Department of Forests and Parks,

These same two plots were left to the Turcottes by this will
after the deaths of Wilfred W. Wilkinson in 1953 and Maude E.
Wilkinson in 1958,

Lavinia Macklem sold the 33-acre tract of the Rock Run Mill
to Wilfred W. Wilkinson in 1929.

In 190L, William S. Archer and Henry W. Archer; trustees, sold
the 33 acres to John M. Macklem. The deed states that this

tract was part of the Land of Promise, which was owned by
Nathaniel CGiles until his death in 1775, and which was then sold
in 1797 by Elizabeth Giles to John Stump of Stafford.

In 1943, Elizabeth Esley sold l% acres to Wilfred W. Wilkinson.

William S. Archer, surviving execubtor, sold the plot to
Elizabeth Esley in 1918.

Henry W. Archer, Jr., was named as a trustes after a court case
involving Henry W. Archer and Thomas W. Maddock. In 1878, the
trustee sold Hemry W. Archer the Rock Run Mill property of

50 acres as well as an adjacent farm of 132 acres, three roods
and 36 perches. The trastees were holding the property after
the death of Ann Archer, daughter of John Stump. Ann had been
left considerable holdings including the Rock Run Mill and the
old Carter house after Johr Stump's death in 1816, Apn died

in 1871, leaving the property to her son, Henry W. Archer, as
executor.

Cassandra Stump, widow of John Stump, conveyed the mill property
to John and Ann Archer 1i 1816. They also received the tract
where Lapidum was laid out,

Samuel Carter, son of John Carter, sold his interest in the mill
and the house to John Stump. The tract measured L0 acres in this
1808 transaction.

In 1801, John Stump sold to John Carter a half-interest in the
mill property that was once part of the Land of Phomise,

In 1797, Elizabeth Giles, daughter of Nathaniel Giles, sold
256 acres to John Stump, Jr.
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The executors of the Jacob Giles estate conveyed one-half

acre  mesr Rock Run Landing to John Stump in 179L,
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INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY

BINAME

HISTORIC

Hock Run Mill

AND/OR COMMON

"BPALOCATION

PEREEIIONEER Stafford Road at Roek Run Road

ITY. N CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT .,
SR Tow Roek Bun First
— VICINITY OF
STATE COUNTY
Maryland Harford
o ———
EJCLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
—DISTRICT L puslic —OCCUPIED _AGRICULTURE X MUSEUM
- - BUILDING(S) —PRIVATE J_unoccuriep — COMMERCIAL Xrank
—_STRUCTURE _BOTH __WORK IN PROGRESS __EDUCATIONAL  _ PRIVATE RESIDENCE
—SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE __ENTERTAINMENT _ RELIGIOUS
—OBJECT —IN PROCESS —YES: RESTRICTED —GOVEANMENT —SCIENTIFIC
—BEING CONSIDERED X YES: UNRESTRICTED —INDUSTRIAL —_TRANSPORTATION
—NO —MILITARY —_OTHER
EJOWNER OF PROPERTY
NAME 3 2 4 o n £,
Marylund Department of Natural Resources Telephone #: 267-5656
STREET & NUMBER
awes StateOffice Building
CITY. TOWN ; k . STATE , zip code
Armapolis VICINITY OF Maryland 21501
TLOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION Liber §: ORG ©73
COURTHOUSE. Folio #: 335
REGISTRY OF DEEDSETC:  Harford County Courthouse
STREET & NUMBER
L0 South Main Street
“CITY, TOWN STATE
Bel Air Maryland
TAREPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS
TITLE
| DATE
_FEDERAL __STATE __COUNTY __1OCAL
DEPOSITORY FOR
SURVEY RECORDS
CITY, TOWN

STATE




[ DESCRIPTION NA-19/

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE A
L_EXCELLENT _DETERIORATED J_uNaLTERED LORIGINAL SITE
—GOOD —RUINS —ALTERED —MOVED  DATE________
—FAIR —UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This is an imposing two and one-half story building with the main entrance facing

the Stafford Road on the west. Tt is of uncoursed rubble stone with guoined corners.
Iron caps are visible on the northern and southern ends of the structure, holding
fast the iron suppartdkhat run through the north-south axis. Such supports also run
from east to west and are visibly capped. The bays are thre.e by two and the windows
are 6 X 6, although the three attic windows on the north and the south ends are three-
paned. Most of the lower windows have new board-and-batten shutters on them. The ddors
are board-and-batten frame and are of older vintage, retaining some of the original
hardware. One is on the west side, a double door recessed in a wood inset with a

2 X 2 window. Two entrances are on the eastern side, one in the cellar and one on the
first floer. The cellar is exposed on this eastern facade, where there some small

slit windows. The roof is a gable flank and is covered with wood shingles, the eaves
possibly being origiral. A single brick chimney stands on the northwest corner of

the roof on the inside end. Some interesting inscriptions are chiselled onto the

stone wall. Most of them are still too worn to read, but there are a few legible

ones, such as "J. J. Wm", "W. G. 1805" and "C. R. Smith 1801".

Across the road from the mill and paralleling the road is the mill race that terminstes
at a sluice and a stone-pillared overshot pipe.that crosses the road. The wheel, on
the southerm side of the building, is seated in a stone moat-like basin that runs
around the eastern facade of the mill and originslly emptied into the Susquehanna
River. A plate on the wheel reads: "Fitz Water Wheel Company Hanover, Pa.". The
axle stem connection into the wall is ringed with a brick arch. Just to the right of
thie is another bricked-up opening where the cog was located that was turned by the
inner gear on the waber wheel.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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g SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—PREHISTORIC ~ _ARCHEULUGY-PREHISTORIC _COMMUNITY PLANNING —LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE ~ _RELIGION
—1400-1499 —ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC —CONSERVATION —LAW —SCIENCE
—1500-1599 —AGRICULTURE —ECONOMICS —LITERATURE —SCULPTURE
—1600-1699 —ARCHITECTURE —EDUCATION —MILITARY —SOCIALHUMANITARIAN
E‘l 700-1799 —ART —ENGINEERING —Music —THEATER
¥&1800-1899 XL _commEeRcE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  __PHILOSOPHY — TRANSPORTATION
Zi-m —COMMUNICATIONS X_INDUSTR\' —POLITICS/GOVERNMENT —OTHER [SPECIFY)

—INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES BUILDER/ARCHITECT

“STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

.One of the oldest mills still standing in Harford County, Rock Run Mill is actually
"the second mill to be located in the area. The first one stood one-half mile above
the oresent structure and was ovmed by the Giles Tamily. Jacob Giles had owned the
tract where both mills had been located, a 712-acre.portion of the Land of Promise,
John Stump ITI, who already owned the Stafford Mill, obtained some of the Giles land
and constructed the existing mill in 1794. He went on to become one of the wealthiest
men in Maryland, although his prominence was somewhat dimmed as it was suspected that
he sold flour to the British during the War of 1812,.I7t1801, -8tump sbld'e half-interest
in the mill to John Carter, who soon died in 1805 with the interest reverting to
Jphn Stump. After his death in 1816, Ann Archer, one of seven Stump children, took
~.] eskdbon of the mill, leasing it out to varddus contractors until her death in 1871.
fenry W. Archer, her son, then became the trustee and he and a Joseph C. Parker operated
the mill for the profit of the other Archer heirs., The flour milling operations
continued into the Twertieth Century and did not cease until after World War II, under
the ownership of John M. Macklem and W. W. Wilkinson, thus giving the structure a
commercial career spamming three centuries,

-

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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EIMAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Harford County Directory- 1953

Harford County Land Records

Mason, Samuel; Historical Sietches of Harford County, 1955, Intelligencer Press,
Lancaster, Pa,

Wright, C. Milton; Our Harford Heritage, 1967, French-Bray, Baltimore.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
EIGEOGRAPHICAL DATA .

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY -

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The mill is located on the east side of Stafford Road just south of that road's
intersection with Rock Run Road., The mill is on and completely surrounded by

state property.

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY

STATE COUNTY

[E1FORM PREPARED BY

NAME / TITLE
Paul L. Penrod/ site surveyor

ORGANIZATION DATE _

Maryland Historical Trust Hay 20, 1976
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE

Shaw House, 21 State Circle 267-1212

CITY OR TOWN STATE
Annapolis Maryland

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights. . )

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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INVENTORY NO. 9 ( ELECTION DISTRICT

DATE : %agﬁg TAX MAP NO.

REMODELING: Drastic, moderate, miror PARCEL NO.

NAME OF PROPERTY: S IR

LOCATION OF PROPERTY: UGN STHTE  PPRE —  rprprnd 17D, AP TRock 2w RD
DIRECTION DWELLING FACES: LOEST 7 0un 1 )

NAME OF OWNER: QSSERIAN_STRTE PNl - D). DT GFZrTRESTE © PAANE
ADDRESS : Aappreits, “10

STORIES: 1[ ] 2[ ] 3[/]/ 4L J 5[] e[ ] BAYS: [ 1 2[ ] 307 a[ 71 5[]

WINGS, ADDITIONS ST Gx~ 6[1 71 [1
E16197 LD fYLL RACE OVER KAL 75 focs fu

WALL CONSTRUCTION:

] FRAME: Bevel, clapboard, weatherboard, wood shingles, board & batten(type?)

] BRICK: Bond type- common, English, Flemish. Sketch variants.

[/] STONE: Bond type- rubble{ ashlar (random or regular), quoins-plain, rusticated
] LOG o MGl ‘GorintO A7 Cop ik

WALL FEATURES: BELT COURSE, PILASTER> OTHERS s 7&2z K0S pypy on V-5 ArSo-8L6
FOUNDATIONS: HIGH, LOW; BRICK STONEY vz ctmne TALES ChULS - S1ET7C CMP S 07845 oV LAULS
WATER TABLE: NONE‘,’ PLAIN, BEVELED, MOULDED BRICK OO fRan £-w pri0

NINI}ONS, TBIM SHUTTERS: 1/1[ ] 2/2[ ] 6/6[4 9/6[ ] 9/9[ 1 other[ ]

POtLL B InD /) pegged[ ] nailed[ ] wide[ ] narrow[ ] J  esdon
A original[ ] replaced[/] e o g T e 2

3ok ~ - 2 1\5£, R r\(:O-~
ENTRANCE, DOORS: LOCATION: ,,%*“’:’?’1;?0”7;(&‘-’,',5% DOK G JBIIE 210 PANE, IWET (5D
original]

HARDWARE : v] replaced[ ]
FAN LIGHT, TRANSOM, SIDE LIGHTS, PLAIN
) PE PR +PES
CORNICE, BARGE, EAVES: * waeus e
original[/] replaced| ]

/
ROOF: GABLE FRONT, GABLE FLAMNK, HIP, MANSARD, FLAT, DORMERS
MATERIAL: wood shingles’ slate, tin, asphalt original[ ] replaced[ ]

PORCHES: SHAPE OF ROOF - shed[ ] hip[ ] gable[ ]

CHIMNEYS: NUMBER [/ BRICK[l/j STONE[ ] CORBELED[ ] originall-] rep]éced[‘/]
LOCATION:  osw (w 2BgB® n7 o N0F

ARCHES :

COMMENTS : UM’” wa/gp ﬁm./ cl g /’W Mz, %M:«z

e ;;”;gm %f%@% . /




A& el - W‘”‘;/,wu/ lontl . oAme torcedad jJ WM'

%] 1y, ; - /fi‘t/‘ l./ﬂ"”j’ . .
Lo SIOL e %,m/ ol L ¢ /ﬂj s e As ,4/”«#“7; :; SIVETERY
K. Jr,,//'— Yo it e for

7z /d;‘//&/ & oy /,f/w/,/4w Al zerne S ot o o /o



B
oo
ek
230y
I>u=
-t
mMSm
] B
d Ze

=
ik "

~

N A4

vre b

RISING SUN ' 5
58 M. TO »

D

34 Wi, TO DB

401) 1040000 FEET| ocromama 24




ABERDEEN QUADRANGLE
MARYLAND

7.5 MINUTE SERIES (TOPOGRAPHIC)
SW/4 HAVRE DE GRACE 15 QUADRANGLE

34 TOC WS ) RISING SUN 7 8 sy 76'—0
401 1 020000 FEET| OCTORARD 7.4 A/ S8 M TO MD 276

T g !

¢

3273730

BAINBRIDG
8 MIT







FI

Rock Run Mill HA-191

Stafford Road at Rock Run Road
Rock Run, MD

Paul Penrod L /76
southern side







Rock Run Mill HA-191
Stafford Road at Rock Run Rd.
Rock Run, MD

Paul Penrod b/76
Sotthside
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